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MICHIGAN CENTRAL RAILROAD YARDS IN CALEDONIA,
AS IT APPEARED SHORTLY BEFORE THE DISASTROUS FIRE OF 1913
Editor's Note: Reprinted from The Caledonia News, Thursday, May 8, 1913
CALEDONIA THREATENED BY RAGING FLAMES

The Abating of the High Wind at the Time of the Fire and the Success of Our Citizens in Preventing Blaze
From Further Spreading are What Saved the Town From Partial or Entire Destruction.

835,000 Loss and Only Small Insurance

M. Wilson Elevator, C.F. Geise Blacksmith Shop, and Philip Geib Wagon Shop are Burned, While Roy
Dodge Auto Garage and Wenger & Clemens' Building were Barely Saved.

In the blaze of last Saturday evening Caledonia saw the worst fire of its history. The triangle to the
southeast between the railroad and Lake Street is the site of the ruins. The elevator, Philip Geib's Carriage
Shop, and the Blacksmith Shop of C. F. Geise are no more. The five hours after 7:30 of Saturday, May 3,
1913, razed what a score of years had built and ran well toward a $35,000 loss, about one-third of which
was covered by insurance.

The elevator, owned and operated by M. Wilson, was by far the greatest loss, not only to its owner, but
also to the welfare of the village and its surrounding territory. With it went an estimated $20,000 dollar
building and $8,000 contents, and industry that has afforded nearly a dozen men and a score or more of
girls and women work; with it, too, went a business enterprise second to none in the village — one it
cannot afford to be without, and a market for grain and produce that the farmers around to a fair extent
have found and appreciated. Mr. Wilson came into the business some fifteen years ago when he purchased
the main wing to the building just destroyed and followed John McQueen in grain dealing. To this main
wing, Mr. Wilson has built four additions, three wooden and only a few years ago, the fourth, a large
engine room of cement blocks.
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On this same site two other elevators have stood
and like this one ended in flames. Away back Mr,
McQueen had a little horse-power elevator in what
was then only the beginnings of the village. When
that burned before our recollections, Mr. McQueen
built a more modern home for his business and
continued to operate in it until it, too, was swept
by the fire of 1880. He then sold the site to Adam
Sherk, who built the main part of the building just
destroyed. Not finding the business to his liking,
Mr. Sherk sold back to McQueen after a few
months' operation and the ownership remained
with him until 1898. The property was then turned
over to Mr. Davis of Grand Rapids of whom Mr.
Wilson bought it that same year. Since then the
business has grown to warrant the additions
mentioned and to a large measure at least, the
frequent title given its site, ‘'The busiest place in
town."'

The elevator ran Saturday evening until nearly
seven o'clock when Mr. Wilson was called from his
home not later than seven-thirty by the call of fire.
It was too late to determine the source or cause of
the blaze. The church bells, criers on the streets,
and a general telephone alarm had hundreds out in
but a few minutes. Nothing could be done to save
it or its contents, although a quantity of wool and
what was movable was gotten out until the flames
forced the crowd of workers away. Then began a
fight to save Mr. Geib’s carriage shop, but its
shingle roof was too ready a tinder for the bucket
brigade to check. Geise’s blacksmith shop was the
next in line, not over five feet away and could not
be saved. Nearly all the tools, two buggies in Mr.
Geib’'s shop and other contents in the two
buildings were sacrificed by the owners with a
larger end in view of saving the town rather than
giving time to removing their own possessions.
Next came Roy Dodge's Ford garage and here the
ficht was on in earnest, although the building was
only a few feet from the blacksmith shop, its
fireproof roofing, a cistern beside it and the
determined efforts of the fighters, succeeded in
checking this path of the fire. At the same time a
similar fight was on to the west on Wenger &
Clemens’ implement shed. The forces were divided
and hundreds of bucket men seemed hurrying to
either place. The shed like the garage had a
fireproof roof in favor of its saving. Wet blankets
were kept over its southeast corner where it was
almost against the burning buildings beyond. At
both places men faced the heat and the work with
a will that saved the greater part of which was in
imminent danger from these buildings should they
take fire.

As soon as reaching the building, Mr. Wilson
and son, Forrest, who accompanied him, rushed to
the second story. Here they separated, Mr. Wilson
starting away toward where he thought the fire
was beginning, and Forrest going on up onto the
roof. Gusts of smoke met Mr. Wilson keeping him
back and so blinding and choking him as to make
it almost impossible for him to find his way back to
the stairway and escape. On the roof Forrest ran to
the big water tank and opened it into the burning
rooms below but the flames were too far scattered
for this to help. He then ran back but found escape
by the stairway shut off. The rods supporting the
roof to the platform ran up to within a few feet of
the main building. They offered the only way
down. Letting himself down over the eaves he
swung himself clear, caught a rod, and slid to the
roof below. Men and ladders were there to take
him down. The skin was burned on his hands from
the rods. He took a chance to do what was the best
hope for saving the building, but nothing could
overcome the start the flames already had.

Beyond the garage to the north and in the
direction of the flames, fanned by a light south-
west wind was a row of wooden buildings facing
main street that had shingle roofs and must have
gone had the garage burned. The stock, tools, and
furnishings respectively of J. H. Kinsey, Mr.
Sullivan, W. J. Robertson, Chas. Ladewig, and
Mrs. Lymanstall were in large part removed from
these buildings to Dr. Houghton's lawn and other
places of safety as it was thought for a time that
nothing could save the garage or these buildings.
In the same way the Liebler and VanAmburg
buildings were sure to go if Wenger & Clemens’
implement shed burned as was also the latter
firm’s tinshop which would have done much
damage to their new cement block hardware.

For all the hurried moving of fixtures there was
but very little damage done in this way nor by the
water used on houses to the southeast. Fire brands
flew all about the southeast part of town but
everywhere was someone to fight the enemy of the
evening; everywhere the fine spirit of assistance
did all that the means at hand permitted men to
do. Water drawers, pails, bearers of burdens —
anything needed was freely given as far as they
were at command.

The fire department was called from Grand
Rapids, but because of a freight sent out to care
for cars standing in the danger zone here and
another freight somewhere on the road beyond
reach of telegraph, the right of way could not be
gotten. The apparatus was already loaded to start
as soon as this could be accomplished when
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President Clemens wired them that the fire was
thought to be under control and not to start
without further notice.

Night trains crept in carefully for fear of the
falling of the northwest corner of the cement block
wall to the elevator engine room which remained
standing until pushed down early Sunday morning.
People hurried in from far around and helped in
the fight. Cisterns and water supplied in many
instances came close to exhaustion. That there was
practically no wind, that fire-proof roofs were in
the way as barriers, and that the bucket brigade
had outdone even its former reputation, are what
are to be thanked that a great part of our town is
not gone.

We remember the other fires of the history of
our village, the other elevators, the handle factory,
the saw mill and Dr. Hubbard’s residence, but in
none of them was there the danger to the village
nor the amount of loss to compare to this. Nothing
in our history has so strongly pointed the lesson
that we need fire protection. To act at once while
the irons are still hot in the ruins, would show us
willing to learn.

Water Works Proposition for Discussion

Every voter in the village ought to be at
Kennedy's Hall, Friday evening. Every interested
citizen will find welcome there. The meeting is
called for promptly eight o’clock and solely for the
purpose of discussing the proposition of water
works for the village. Events of last Saturday
evening make this a most timely subject and one of
most vital interest at this time, and it's not at
random. There's something to offer you. Every-
body out!

Editor’s Note: The following story was reprinted
from the Grand Rapids Press, March 30, 1917.

CALEDONIA VISITED BY $20,000 BLAZE

Three Stor: : Destroyed By Flames of Undeter-
mi red Origin Friday Morning

Caledonia larch 30 — Fire of undetermined
origin early today destroyed three buildings in the
business section, entailing a loss of about $20,000,
partly covered by insurance. The fire started at
three o'clock in the Wenger & Clemens hardware
store and spread to the W. J. Robertson jewelry
store and the building owned by Burt Palmer and
occupied by a barber shop and bakery. Two of the
buildings were new, the jewelry and hardware
stores having been erected last year.

When the alarm was sounded nearly everyone in
the village turned out and helped fight the blaze.
Caledonia has no modern fire fighting apparatus.

All the buildings will be reconstructed, it is

Shown above is the Wenger & Clem-
ens Hardware building in dowtoun Cale-
donia as it appeared before the major
fire in March 1917.

At left is shown a photo of the rubble
after that disastrous fire.

On the next page is shown another
view following the fire.
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